
York Town Board Meeting 
February 27, 2014 

 
 

Present:  Supervisor Gerald L. Deming, Council Members: Lynn Parnell, Norman 
                 Gates, David Deuel and Frank Rose Jr. 
 
Absent:   None 
Others:   Donna Gates, Diane Skeffington, Henry Fuller, John Ellis, Carl Peter   
                 (Zoning & Code Officer) and Davies Nagel 
 
     Supervisor Deming opened the Town Board Meeting at 7:30 p.m. and invited 
Councilman Rose to lead in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
MINUTES 
RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Gates and seconded by Mr. Deuel to approve the 
minutes of the February 13th Town Board Meeting.  Voted on and approved, 
Yes-5, No-0. 
 
PRIVILEGES OF THE FLOOR 
1)  Donna Gates and Diane Skeffington: 
     Mrs. Skeffington asked the Board the status of the request made two weeks 
ago, regarding the State Champion soccer signs.  Supervisor Deming stated he 
spoke with Senator Gallivan’s office seeking their assistance with the permit 
matter.  It was conveyed to him they will try to check on what can be done to 
move forward, but is not reassured about the potential outcome.  Mr. Gallivan’s 
office commented if the Town has an alternate plan, he would suggest using it. 
     Supervisor Deming presented a copy of the proposed sign, prepared by 
Engineer, Eric Wies.  The new sign would reflect a height increase, repainting and 
a separate message board attachment.  Mrs. Skeffington asked if the Board 
proceeds with this sign, will the State approve it.  Mr. Deming responded, the 
State would approve what has been designed because it matches what is already 
existing.  Mrs. Gates and Mrs. Skeffington reviewed the design and commented 
how beautiful it was and on how well it blends into the community.  Mrs. Gates 
asked how many signs would be prepared.  Supervisor Deming replied probably 4 
signs, spaced throughout the township.  Mr. Deming added, now that the design 
has been determined, Mr. Worden will be asked to obtain pricing. 
     Mrs. Gates and Mrs. Skeffington stated they are very pleased with what has 
been prepared and commented that they might be able to assist with some 
funding for the signs, perhaps through the York Central School Boosters and/or 
other outside donations. 
 
2)  Davies Nagel: 
     Mr. Nagel asked to speak with the Board this evening to discuss a comment 
made in the minutes of the January 16, 2014 Town Board Meeting.  Mr. Nagel 
stated the Board was discussing a recent Planning Board Meeting and comments 
regarding the Steering Committee’s report on fracking.  A question was asked if a 



member of the Planning Board was bias, and the reply of Town Board Members 
was that there was, by one member.  Mr. Nagel commented he does not feel 
because he has a difference of opinion that constitutes bias, and read aloud the 
definition of the word.  Bias:   prejudice in favor of or against one thing, person, 
or group compared with another, usually in a way considered to be unfair. 
     Supervisor Deming stated the question did arise at the January meeting, and 
we did agree with the statement.  Mr. Deming stated should we have corrected 
the term “bias”, absolutely, but didn’t at that time.  Mr. Nagel stated when the 
Board chose not to adopt a moratorium and move forward with the Steering 
Committee, he offered numerous times to assist and submitted a great deal of 
information to the committee for  review.  The information given to Chairman,  
Ellis was to educate his committee on the risks and dangers of hydrofracturing 
and the hopes to protect the York Community.  Mr. Nagel added as a member of 
the Planning Board who helped create the Comprehensive Plan, updated zoning 
regulations and a member of the Open Space committee, he was never accused of 
being bias or not having an open mind. 
     Mr. Nagel asked if Supervisor Deming was asked to share a letter with the 
Town Board and didn’t for whatever reason, would he be referred to as bias or 
unethical?  Supervisor Deming replied Yes, it could be both. Mr. Nagel stated 
time and again he submitted written documentation to Steering Committee 
Chairman Ellis to assist in their decision, but never seeing anything included in 
the meeting minutes or in the final conclusion results.  Mr. Nagel added, a packet 
was given to Mr. Ellis from Dr. Arnold Matlin outlining the health impacts which 
was never discussed by the committee or appeared in the final report.  Mr. Nagel 
sent a letter to Mr. Ellis inquiring if the packet was received, since there was no 
mention of it in the report.  Mr. Ellis only acknowledged receipt of the 
information.  Mr. Nagel commented the majority of the information submitted 
was never added and feels Mr. Ellis on his own, decided what was or was not 
presented to the Steering Committee, which was a personal decision.  
     Mr. Nagel stated to the Board, what the Committee prepared is a flawed 
report.  Mr. Ellis may feel what they prepared was for the entire community, but 
it’s not.  He and many other residents still have questions and concerns that need 
to be addressed. 
 
** Mr. Nagel submitted correspondence to the Board…. 
 



















3)  Jack Ellis: 
     Mr. Ellis addressed with the Board the ongoing manure spreading in the fields 
on Ellicott and Anderson Roads.  Mr. Ellis stated the fields are completely 
saturated, and has concerns regarding contamination of wells in the area.  Mr. 
Ellis asked what guidelines or permits farmers need to abide by.  Supervisor 
Deming stated all guidelines, permits and enforcement is by way of New York 
State Department of Environmental Conservation.  Councilman Deuel suggested 
when having agricultural related issues, contact DEC directly or the farmer 
themselves.  Mr. Ellis stated he spoke with Donnan’s about the issue, each time 
was told they are adhering to their permit requirements.  Supervisor Deming 
stated if the manure is entering streams, properties or flowing across roads, the 
Town and DEC should be notified for inspection.   
     Mr. Fuller expressed a recent encounter he had as well on Fowlerville Road.  
Several trucks were parked in the roadway while unloading manure to the field.  
Mr. Fuller asked the driver about moving the truck to the field itself because of 
the mess and was told it was too saturated to drive onto.  Mr. Fuller questioned, 
how much is too much? 
     Mr. Ellis commented DEC and the Town Board need to be more aware of 
what’s happening in the farming areas. 
     Mr. Ellis briefly discussed a recent audit meeting held by the Mt. Pleasant 
Cemetery Association.  Many of the local cemeteries are dealing with financial 
struggles and would truly benefit from any/all donations.  Their cemetery is 
pursuing fixed annuities in the hopes of trying to continue forward, but the road 
ahead is difficult. 
     Mr. Ellis asked the Board about the status of water for the Linwood area.  Mr. 
Ellis conveyed that he sent a letter to the Livingston County and Monroe County 
Water Authorities outlining the water issues in the area, seeking any assistance.  
Although not receiving anything from Livingston County, he did receive a nice 
response letter from Monroe County, explaining that the Town level is the way to 
proceed.  Supervisor Deming informed Mr. Ellis due to the major upgrades 
Monroe County would need to do ($30 million), they unfortunately are not an 
option at this time. 
     Mr. Deming presented summary estimates based upon 39 residents in the 
district area: 
 
                                                                                                  

    TOWN OF YORK                      
SUMMARY OF WATER SYSTEM COST ESTIMATES 

 
     Contractor Installed             Town Installed   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
SERVICE AREA        SERVICE AREA       SERVICE AREA       SERVICE AREA 

                                                                                  WITH GRANT       WITHOUT GRANT      WITH GRANT        WITHOUT GRANT 

 

 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CAPITAL COST     $1,169,300        $1,169,300             $1,052,370            $1,052,370 

 

RD GRANT          $500,000                     $0                          $500,000                    $0 

 

USDA-RD LOAN                                                $669,300               $1,169,300                  $552,370             $1,052,370 

 

INTEREST RATE                                                   3.5%                      4.375%                        3.5%                    4.375% 

 

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE                                $32,114                   $63,667                     $26,504                 $57,300 
 

TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS                                 39                             39                            39                           39   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Mr. Ellis asked if the Town may be able to install the water main.  Supervisor 
Deming replied, we had the engineers prepare a quote if the Town installed, but        
   Mr. Ellis asked if the Town may be able to install the water main. Supervisor 
Deming replied, we had the engineers prepare a quote if the Town installed, but 
feel the project is far too labor intensive, with Highway Superintendent, Mr. 
Worden estimating 3 years for completion.     
  Mr. Ellis asked if money from the desalinization plant could be used, which 
Supervisor Deming replied there is no money at this time.  The funding available 
to us is through Rural Development.  Mr. Deming added the average income can 
not exceed $56,800.00 to qualify for grant funding, and currently the average in 
the Town of York is at $60,000.00.  The maximum the Town is legally able to 
charge each household per year is $680.00, if the amount is over, State approval 
is required, and usually not granted.  Supervisor Deming stated that the majority 
of our older pipe has been upgraded, with exception of the area on Route 36 in 
Wadsworth, which is a bit over 1 mile in distance. Mr. Deming stated with 
Monroe County not an option, we will need a pumping system to extend water to 
the Linwood area, which increases the cost further.  Mr. Ellis asked if the Village 
of Geneseo could handle additional request for water from us.  Supervisor 
Deming replied they could handle the additional consumption without issue.  Mr. 
Deming stated these are the numbers we have, which are very high, now we need 
to let the residents know where we are at.  Mr. Deming commented, sadly back in 
2010 we thought with the possible assistance from Caledonia Diesel, we might be 
able to service part of Anderson Road, but when they decided not to proceed with 
water to the business further expansion discussion ceased. 
     Mr. Ellis stated to the Board in response to Mr. Nagel’s comments this 
evening, he and the Steering Committee did their best for the York Community.   
 
 
 
** With the absence of Mr. Worden no report was given for the Highway 
Department and Water/Sewer Departments this evening. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
1)  Barn discussion: 
     Councilman Deuel commented at the February 13th Town Board Meeting, we 
discussed interest from Sue Smith regarding use of their renovated barn for 
community events.  Mr. Deuel stated there are several barns in the township that 



could potentially be refurbished, with numerous possibilities.  The most 
important factor is to follow closely the existing codes in order address 
everything.  Supervisor Deming commented additional questions will certainly 
take place through this process knowing this is new territory.  Mr. Deming added, 
the Smith’s were having an Engineer view the structure over the weekend, but we 
are not aware of the results as of yet. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1)  Accident: 
     Supervisor Deming informed the Board that Highway employee, Francis 
Burger was injured on Tuesday, the 18th.  Mr. Burger slipped and fell, splitting his 
head, ultimately needing the ambulance.  Mr. Deming stated Mr. Burger was 
fortunate that a neighbor came upon him shortly after the incident, calling 911.  
Mr. Burger was hospitalized overnight but is resting comfortably at home now.  
We are unsure as to when he may return to work. 
 
2)  Work Session: 
      Supervisor Deming reminded the Board of the joint work session of the Town 
Board and the Planning Board scheduled for Wednesday, March 5th at 7:00.  
Discussion will take place on the document prepared by Steering Committee, and 
all further suggestions and/or recommendations to it. 
 
3)  Health Insurance: 
     Supervisor Deming reported we were recently informed from our Health 
carrier, they will no longer offer the current Excellus packages, effective April 1, 
2014.  Once they have provided the Town with option information, we will then 
have to meet with the Union personnel to discuss how to proceed and what 
coverage to secure. 
 
 
OTHER 
1)  Agricultural Information: 
     Councilman Deuel briefly stated at the February 13th meeting his desire to 
discuss further the Agricultural Districts Law, providing for reduced property tax 
for land in agricultural areas.  Mr. Deuel commented the purpose of the tax 
exemptions or tax incentives is to keep agricultural strong and productive, but 
over paying for vacant land areas needs to be addressed prior to Assessor 
Sapienza’s re-evaluation update. 
     Mr. Deuel reported there are 24 classes of exemptions (633 total number) at 
$65,599,284.00 and 5 Agricultural related exemptions (340 total) at 
$36,175,709.00.  Exemptions of open land total $30.8 million. 
     If the Town was to add the Light District to the General Fund, the increase  
would go from $4.255 to $4.354, eliminating the light tax and roughly increase 
the General line item by $. 10 cents. 
     Mr. Fuller asked if the assessment is based on what we purchase it for, or what 
the Assessor thinks it is worth.  Councilman Deuel replied the assessment is 
based upon the purchase price.  Mr. Deuel suggested using agricultural 



assessment value (open land, no buildings or residences) for fire tax, which 
would increase the rate from $.79 cents to $.92 cents per thousand, only an 
increase of $.13 cents.  Mr. Deuel reported from 2010-2014 agricultural value 
assessment has increased 22% and full value by 23%.  Mr. Deuel outlined several 
towns where fire tax is less than town taxable; Caledonia, Geneseo, Lima, Mt. 
Morris and Nunda.  The towns that have fire taxes greater than town tax roll; 
York, West Sparta, Springwater, Sparta, Portage, Ossian, Livonia, Leicester, 
Groveland, Conesus and Avon.  A total of 265 calls were dispatched in the County 
in 2012-2013 of which 11 or 4% were outside/grass fires.  The fire tax levy from 
2010-2014 has increased $15,600.00, which is an increase in town assessment by 
$16 million dollars. 
     Mr. Deuel commented open land is paying more than their fair share of tax 
and wanted feedback from the Board before potential presentation to the public 
on the subject. Supervisor Deming stated due to the fact three members of the 
Town Board have agricultural area that could potentially benefit from this 
change, he feels an informational meeting should take place and then a public 
referendum held to determine the decision on the matter. 
 
 
BILLS 
RESOLUTION offered by Mrs. Parnell and seconded by Mr. Rose to approve all 
claims brought before the Board.  Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0. 
 
 

 General Fund Claim  #71-83  $10,252.28 

 Joint Water/Sewer  #51-63  $19,896.45 

 Youth Fund Claim  #2   $     884.42 

 Highway Fund Claim #40-50  $28,280.12 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Gates and seconded by Mr. Deuel to adjourn the 
Town Board Meeting.  Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0. 
 
 
Town Board Meeting closed at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
        Christine M. Harris, Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 
 


